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Dear Sir or Madam:

Enclosed please find a copy of a complaint filed in the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of New York on October 23, 2003 by Robert K.
Finnell, derivatively on behalf of AllianceBernstein Growth and Income Fund and the
AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds against the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds listed in
Appendix A (the “Funds”) and the Funds’ affiliated parties listed in Appendix B. The
Funds make this filing pursuant to Section 33 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as

amended.
Sincerely,
%//M Ml
Paul M. Miller
Enclosure

CC: Keith A. O’Connell
Domenick Pugliese




AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds

APPENDIX A

Name Registration CIK No.
No.

AllianceBernstein Growth & Income Fund, Inc. 811-00126 | 0000029292
AllianceBernstein Health Care Fund, Inc. 811-09329 0001085421
AllianceBernstein Disciplined Value Fund, Inc. 811-09687 0001090504
AllianceBernstein Mid-Cap Growth Fund, Inc. 811-00204 0000019614
AllianceBernstein Real Estate Investment Fund, Inc. 811-07707 0001018368
The AllianceBernstein Portfolios 811-05088 0000812015
- AllianceBernstein Growth Fund
AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series, Inc. 811-09176 0001062417
- Biotechnology Portfolio
- Technology Portfolio
- Premier Portfolio
AllianceBernsteinTrust 811-10221 0001129870
- AllianceBernstein Small Cap Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein Global Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein International Value Fund
AllianceBernstein Premier Growth Fund, Inc. 811-06730 0000889508
AllianceBernstein Quasar Fund, Inc. 811-01716 0000081443
AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, Inc. 811-03131 0000350181
AllianceBernstein Utility Income Fund, Inc. 811-07916 0000910036
AllianceBernstein Balanced Shares, Inc. 811-00134 0000069752
AllianceBernstein Blended Style Series, Inc. 811-21081 0001172221
- U.S. Large Cap Portfolio
AllianceBernstein All Asia Investment Fund, Inc. 811-08776 0000930438
AllianceBernstein Greater China 97 Fund, Inc. 811-08201 0001038457
AllianceBernstein International Premier Growth Fund, Inc. 811-08527 0001050658
AllianceBernstein Global Small Cap Fund, Inc. 811-01415 | 0000095669
AllianceBernstein New Europe Fund, Inc. 811-06028 | 0000859605
AllianceBernstein Worldwide Privatization Fund, Inc. 811-08426 | 0000920701
AllianceBernstein Americas Government Income Trust, Inc. 811-06554 0000883676
AllianceBernstein Bond Fund, Inc. 811-02383 0000003794
- Corporate Bond Portfolio
- Quality Bond Portfolio
- U.S. Government Portfolio
AllianceBernstein Emerging Market Debt Fund, Inc. 811-08188 | 0000915845
AllianceBernstein Global Strategic Income Trust, Inc. 811-07391 | 0001002718
AllianceBernstein High Yield Fund, Inc. 811-09160 0001029843
AllianceBernstein Multi-Market Strategy Fund, Inc. 811-06251 0000873067




Sanford C. Bernstein Fund, Inc. 811-05555 0000832808
- Intermediate California Municipal Portfolio
- Intermediate Diversified Municipal Portfolio
- Intermediate New York Municipal Portfolio
AllianceBernstein Municipal Income Fund, Inc. 811-04791 | 0000798737
- National Porfolio
- California Portfolio
- Insured California Portfolio
- Insured National Portfolio
- New York Portfolio
AllianceBernstein Municipal Income Fund II 811-07618 | 0000899774
- Arizona Portfolio
- Florida Portfolio
- Massachusetts Portfolio
- Michigan Portfolio
- Minnesota Portfolio
- New Jersey Portfolio
- Ohio Portfolio
- Pennsylvania Portfolio

Virginia Portfolio
A]hance All-Market Advantage Fund, Inc. 811-08702 | 0000928609
ACM Income Fund, Inc. 811-05207 | 0000816754
ACM Government Opportunity Fund, Inc. 811-05595 | 0000834933
ACM Managed Dollar Income Fund, Inc. 811-07964 0000910524
ACM Managed Income Fund, Inc. 811-05643 0000838133
ACM Municipal Securities Fund, Inc. 811-07510 | 0000897513
Alliance California Municipal Income Fund, Inc. 811-10575 0001162028
Alliance National Municipal Income Fund, Inc. 811-10573 0001162027
Alliance New York Municipal Income Fund, Inc. 811-10577 | 0001162030
The Spain Fund, Inc. 811-05189 | 0000818105
Alliance World Dollar Government Fund, Inc. 811-07108 0000890881
Alliance World Dollar Government Fund II, Inc. 811-07732 0000906013




APPENDIX B
Affiliated Parties of AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds
Name CIK No. Registration | IARD No.
No.
Alliance Capital Management Holding L.P. 0000825313 | 001-09818 | 106998
801-32361
Alliance Capital Management L.P. N/A 801-56720 | 108477
AXA Financial, Inc. 0000880002 | 001-11166 | N/A
Gerald Malone, Senior Vice President of N/A N/A N/A
Alliance Capital Management L.P. and Portfolio
Manager
John D. Carifa, Director N/A N/A N/A
Ruth Block, Director N/A N/A N/A
David H. Dievler, Director N/A N/A N/A
John H. Dobkin, Director N/A N/A N/A
William H. Foulk, Jr., Director N/A N/A N/A
Clifford L. Michel, Director N/A N/A N/A
Donald L. Robinson, Director N/A N/A N/A
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IN T.U’NITED STATES DISTRICT C U.8. DISTRICT COURT £ DAy, <

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEWYORK e 93 700
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ROBERT K. FINNELL, | : - CIVIL ACTION
Derivatively on behalf of

v : NO. . .
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH AND : 3 5 3 4 , 5
INCOME FUND and the : -

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUTUAL FUNDS',
Plaintiff WEXLER* “E“

Y. o . 1 -
- - o WALL. M.J.
- ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT :

HOLDING L.P., ALLIANCE CAPITAL : ,
MANAGEMENT, L.P., AXA FINANCIAL, - :- JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

INC., GERALD T. MALONE, CHARLES : '

SCHAFFRAN, BRUCE W. CALVER,

LEWIS A. SANDERS, JOHN D. CARIFA,

RUTH BLOCK, DAVID H. DIEVLER,

JOHN H. DOBKIN, WILLIAM H. ‘

FOULK, JR., CLIFFORD L. MICHEL,

DONALD J. ROBINSON, CANARY

CAPITAL PARTNERS, LLC, CANARY

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC,

AND CANARY CAPITAL PARTNERS, :

LTD., BANK OF AMERICA CORP. and JOHN :

DOES 1-100, :

Defendants
and
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH AND
INCOME FUND and the
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUTUAL FUNDS

Nominal Defendants :

DERIVATIVE COMPLAINT

' A list of the “AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds” is attached to this Derivative Complaint as
Exhibit A hereto. :




YThe plaintiff, Rober.Finnell, derivatively on behalf of t lianceBernstein Growth
and Income Fund and the AllianceBemnstein Mutual Funds, hereby complains against the

Defendants as follows:

JJURISD.ICTION AND VENUE

1. | This Court has jurisdiction ovér this action. pursﬁant to Section 44 of the
Investment Company Act of 1940 (“Invcstrhent Compéﬁy Act”), 15 US.C. § 80a-43; Section 27
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (thc “Exchange Act”), 15 U.S.C. §78aa; and 28 U.S.C. §
1331, . |

2. This Court also has supplemer‘xta‘l‘ jurisdiction, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § >1367(a),
over the state law clajms asserted herein, because they arise out of and are part of the same case
or controversy as the federal claims alleged. |

3. | Venue is proper in this judicial di‘striét because some or all of the Defendants
conduct buvsiness, in this district and some b_f the wrongful acts alleged herein took place or
originated in this district.

4. | In connection with the acts and practices alleged heréin, Defendants directly or
indirectly used the mails and instrumentali;ies of interstate commerce, inciuding, but not limited
to, the mails, interstaté télephonc c§mmunications, and the facilities of the hgtional securities
markets and national securities exchanges. - | |

PARfiES
Plaintiffs
5. Plaintiff Robert K. Finnell, a resident of . Rome, Georgia, purcﬁaséd shares of the

AllianceBernstein Growth & Income Fund (the “Fund”) on or around March 15, 2002, and

continues to hold such shares.




Alliance Defendan‘ : . _ | . :

6. Defendant Alliance Capital Management LP., the Fund's investment adviser
(“Allance” or fhe “‘Advise‘r”) is a gblobal inveétrr’;ent mariageinent firm that provi_des mbhey
management services for pubii_c and private employee benefit plans, retirement funds, banks,
insurance companies and high net worth individuals. Alliance is one of tﬁe largest mutual fund
sponsors in vthe world and has been adviser to the Fund sihce 1ts inception. ‘As of June 30, 2003,
Alliance superviséd $426 billion in assets including $37 bi]lion in mutual-fund assets. Alliance
is a Delaware iinﬁted partnershiﬁ and ié a registered investment advis‘er under the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940. | : |

7. Alliance is resporisible for the day-to-day ‘managernent of investmenf portfolios
and other business affairs of the Fund and all other AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds. Alliance
furnishes advice and recommendations conceming investments; administrative, complianée, and
accounting services. -~ The individual AllianceBemstein Mutual Funds pay Alliance for
management and investment advisory services quar;erly based on the average net assets of the
| _ funds.

| 8. Alliance Capitél Managérﬁent Holding L.P. (*Alliance ‘,Holding”), a Delaware

corporation with its principal ‘place of business at 1345 Avenue of the Americas, New York,
New York, is a publicly-traded holding COmpany that offers di\)e%‘siﬁed investment management
services through defendant Alliance. Alliance Holding owns a 30.8 percent interest in vAlliance
and by virtue thereo'fb 'cohtrols, oversees, and directs ihe actions of Alliance. |

9. Defendant AXA Financial, Inc. (“AXA Financial”), a Delaware corporation with

its principal place of business at 1290 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York, and a

subsidiary of AXA SA, Europe’s second largest insurer, provides financial advisory services,




insurance and investment n.gement products. AXA owns 55.7 ‘nt economic interest in

Alliance and by virtue thereof controls, oversees, and directs the actions of Alliance.

10. | Defendant Alliance Capital Managément Corporation (“ACMC”), an indirect

Wholly-owned subsidiary of AXA Financial, is the genera1 partner of both Ailiance Holding and
Alliance. |

ll.. At all felevant times, Defendant Gerald T. Malone (“Malone”) was the Senior
: Vice President of the Fund and Senior Vine President of ACMC, with which he has begn
associated since prior to 1998. Malone was thé portfolio manager of the Fund and two Alliance
hedge funds until his su.sp:ension as a result of his invqlvement in the activities giving rise to this
action. Malone’s immediate superior in the Fund was defendant John D. Carifa (“Carifa”).

12.  Atall relevant times, Defendant Charles Schaffran (“Schaffran”) was a marketing
- executive with Alliance’s hedge fnnd divi.fs'ion, a nart of Alliance, whic-hv sells hedge funds to
public investors,‘until his suspension‘ as a result af ‘nis involvement in the ac_tivities giving rise to
this action. Schaffran joined Alliance in November 1994 to take over the management of ‘the
aforementioned then-new nedge fund division.

13.  Defendant Bruce W. Calvert (“Calver "} is Chairman of the Board of ACMC and
was the Chief Executive Officer of ACMC from 1999 to June 2003. In that capacity he is and
was ultxmately respon51ble for the actions of ACMC

14,  Defendant Lewis A. Sanders (“Sanders”) became fhe Chief Executive Officer of

ACMC on June 30, 2003,> and in that capacity he is and was ultimately responsible for the

actions of ACMC. He has been a Director, Vice 'Chairman, and Chief Investment Officer of

Alliance since October 2, 2000.

]5. At all relevant times, Defendant Carifa was President and Chief Operating Ofﬁcer

of ACMC and Chief Executxve Officer of Alliance’s Mutual Funds Division and in that capacity




he is and was-responsibl‘ the‘day-to-day operatiohs of AC’ and the Mutual Funds
Division of Alliance; including its Legal, Compliance, and Corporate Affairs.
Director Defendants |
16.  The following individual defendants were, at all relevant times, Directors of the
Fund. The business address of each’director is 1345 Avenue of the Americas, New Ybrk, NY Ry
10105. o - L
2. John D. Carifa, Chair and President of the Fund and President, Chief
Operating Officer and a Director of ACMC and a Director in 114 of the
AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds. :

'b.- Ruth Block, Director in 93 of the AilianceBemstein Mutual Funds.

c. David H. Dievler, Director in 98 of the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds.
Senior Vice President of ACMC until December 1994,

d..  John H. Dobkin, Director in 94 of the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds.
Served as Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of ACMC from 1988-92.

e William H. Foulk, Jr., Director in  110 of the AllianceBernstein Mutual
Funds. ' ' .

f. . Clifford L. Michel, Director in 93 of the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds.

g.  Donald J. Robinson, Director in 92 of the AllianceBémstein Mutual
Funds. ' E

The Directors select the managers, advisers and officers Qf the Fund, have a fiduciary
duty to the Fund and its beneficiaries, and a duty to presche the asscfs of the Fupd. Moreo§er; :
the business and affairs of the Fund aré managed ﬁnder the direction of the Board of Directors.
Three directors of ‘the Fund, Carifa, Dievler, _ahd Fou1k,4 are aiso directors' of the

AllianceBernstein Technology Fund which is also implicated as part of the market timing

scheme.




Canary Defendants

17. Deféndant Canary Caﬁital .Partners, vLLC (“CCP”), is a New Jérsey limited
liability cdmpany with its principal'ofﬁcés in Secaucus, New Jersey. At all relevanf times, CCP
was a hedge fund engaged in the business of late trading and timing mutual fu.nds. |

18. Defendani Canary Capital Partners, Ltd. (“CCP Ltd.”), is ‘a Bermuda limited
liability company. At all relevant times, CCP Ltd. was also a hgdgc fund engaged in the business
of timing mutual-funds. |

19, befendant Canary Investment Managément, LLC (*CIM”), is a New J ersey
ﬁmited liability comi)any with its principal offices in Secaucus,‘ New Jersey, At all relevant
times, CIM managed the assets of CCP and CCP- Ltd. in exchange for a ‘feve equal to 1.5 percent
of the assets of Canary plus 25 percent of the profits above a certain threshold. As of July 2003,
Canary Asset Management had received appro#imately $40 million in Canary management and
incentive fees. The size of .these fees reflects thé phenomenal success Caﬁary enjoyed both in
.term_s of itsb trading resuits and fhe amount of capiia] it was able to gather in the fund.

20. CCp, CCP .Ltd., and CIM are collectively referred to herein as “Canary.” Canary |
employed a number of professionals and traders, and used sophisticated computer models and '
equipment in order té identify and theﬁ éxploif late tmdiﬂg and timing opportunities. Becaﬁse S0
much of its business occurred after the close of U.S. markets, Canary em.pbloyees regularly
worked into the evening.

John Does 1-100

21.  The true identities, roles and capacities of John Does 1-100 have yet to be.
ascertained. Included. in John Does 1-100 arve' hedge funds, hedge fund managers, brokerage

firms and fiduciaries to the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds who participated, exploited and
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perpetrased the unlawful la‘ding io AllianeeBemstein Mutual F. and knowingly violated
the policies established by the AllianceBemstein Mutual Funds. “In addition, it includes those
entities and individuals‘who conspired. and assisted in exploiting the opportunities provided by
the Alliance defendaots to make illioit trades in the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds.k Such
defendants directly or indirecﬁy profited by their own, or others, ability to engage in improper
late trading and timing at the expense of non-partioipating AilianceBerostein Mutual Funds
investors, Furthermore John Does 1- 100 actlvely enticed the Alliance Defendants to breach the
fiduciary dutles owed to the A]hanceBernstem Mutual Funds through numerous means including
the deposx_t of assets in Alliance hedge funds in exchange for the right to make short-terrn and
late trades in AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds. The identities of John Does 1-100 will be
disclosed in amendments to this complaint when the true-identities are discovered.

Bank Of America Corp.

22.  Defendant Bank.of Amefioa Corp. (“BOA”) is a Delaware corporation with its
headquarters located at 100 N. Tryon St., in Charlotte, North Carolina 28255. BOA isa bank
holding company and a financial holding company that provides a diversified range of banking'
and non-banking ﬁnanciai services and products. Among its financial service offerings is its own‘
line of mutual funds mar_keted as the Nations Funds. In addition to offering its‘customers the
option to purchase shares in a Nations Fund mutual fund, BOA offers hundreds of mutual funds

that are not related to BOA. Because of its mutual fund routing system BOA has the capabxhty A

to allow md1v1duals to make 1llegal late trades in any of the hundreds of mutual funds it offers o

‘In fact, BOA installed specxal oomputer equlpment in Canary s office for the very purpose of
enabling Canary to late trade from within Canary s own ofﬁces Through BOA'’s proprietary

1nstallat10n, Canary Defendants executed at least one late trade in Alliance Growth and Income

Fund valued at $11 million.




® o

Nominal Defendanﬁ | |

23. Nominal Defendant the Fund, a Maryiand corporation with its principal place of
business in New York, NY, is r¢gistered under the Investment Company Act as a diversiﬁed,’
open-eﬂd inveétment company. The Fund is managed in its entivréty by Alliance. The Fund’s
stated investment objective is to emphasize growth by investing primarily in securities of
companiés which are expected to benéﬁt from .technc;lt‘)gical advances and improvements of
capital, and investments‘ will be mg&e baséd uﬁon their potential 'for capital appreciation.

| 24.  Nominal ciefendani AlliancéBemstein Mutual Funds consist of all of the

AllianceBernstein mutual fundé, including the"Fund, as defined in the annexed exhibit, which are
each organized under the Investment Company Act as open-end investment companies. The
AllianceBernstein Mutual Fﬁnds are Maryland corporations with their principal place of business
at 1345 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York. Each individual AllianceBemStéin
Mutual Fund is operated and controlled by Alliance. | |

25. The defendants described in paragraphs 6-15 are sometimes referred to as the
“Alliance Defendants.”v The defendants describe‘d in paragraphs 21 are sometimes referred to as
: tﬁe v“‘John Doe Defendants.” The defendants described in paragraphs 23-24 are sometimes
referred to as the “Noxﬁinal Defendants.” The defendants described in paragraph 16 afe
‘sometimes referred to as the “Director Defendants.”

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

26. This derivative action is brought to recover damages for injuries to the Fund, the

AllianceBemstein Mutual Funds, and each of them caused by the Defendants’. breaches of

fiduciary duty_ and unlawful and  manipulative trading activities and devices in the




- AllianceBemstein Mutual ‘s which operated as a fraud and de‘)n the Plaintiffs and the
Nominal Defendants (hereafter together “Plaintiff”).

Fiduciary Duty

27. Each of th-e Alliance ‘Defen_dants and the Director. Defendaﬁts ‘owed to the
AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds and their shareholders thé ﬁduciary duties of loyalty, candor
and fair dealing, and under the Investment Company Act, the duty to refrain from charging or
- collecting excess compensation or‘ other payments for services _-in order to preserve the funds’
property and assets, owed the duty not to vplace their own financial interests above those of the
AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds and their shareholdgrs, and owed the duty of full and candid
disclosure of all material facts thereto. All AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds are %perated and

controlled by Alliance.

Manipulative Devices

28. Like all other ﬁutuﬂ funds, vAllianceBgrnvsteinv Mutual Funds shares are valued
once a day, at 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time, following the close of the financial mar_kets in Néw
_York. The price, known as the Net Asset Value (“NAV”), reflects the closing prices of the
securities that éomprise‘ a particular fund’s portfolio pius the value of any uninvested cash thaf
the fund manager maintains for the fund. Thus, although the shares of a mgtual fund afe bought
and sold all day long, the price.at which the shares tradé does not change duﬁhg the course of the .
- day. Orders placed any time up to 4:00 p.m. aré priced at tﬁat day’s NAV, and orders placed
- after 4:01 p.m. are priced at the next day’s NA‘VV. This practice, known a§ “forward pricing,” has
been required by 1av§ since 1968. o

Late Trading

29. - Because of forward pricing, mutual funds are susceptible to a manipulative

practice known as “late 'tr‘ading.” Late trading is the unlawful practice of allowing some




investors to purchasé mutu‘nd shares after 4:00 pm at that da.IAV, even thoﬁgh such

after-hours trades should be priced at the hext day’s NAV. Late traders seek to take advantage
of gvenfs that oceur after the close of Atr‘ading on any given day, while purchasing shares of
mutual funds at pﬁcés that do not take thoée évents in£o consideration. For example, if a mutual
fund -ihvééts in the stopk of a particular company that announces positive results at 5:00 p.m.
aftef the close of trading, a_laie trader gets to buy shares of that mutuallv fund at_the 4:00 p.m.
price, which does‘ not reflect the favorable information. When trading opens the next day, the
price of the affected company’s stock will rise, causing the fund’s NAV to rise. The late tradér .
can either hold onto his mutual fund »s1-1ar.es,‘ acquired at yésterdéy’s cheaper price, or sell those |
shares and realize an immediate profit. |

30.  “Late trading can be analogized to betting today on yesterday’s horse races.”™
The late fradér’s arbitrage profit comes dollar-for-dollar out of the mutual fund that the late
trader buys. When the late trader redeems His shares and claimé‘his profit, the mutuél fund
manager has to either sell stopk, or use cash §n hand -- stock and-cash that used to belong in the
fuhd -- to give the late trader his gain. The late trader’s proﬁt is revenue withheld from the
mutual fund. The forward pricing rule was enacted precisély fo prevent this kind of abuse. See
17 CF.R. §270.22¢-1(a).

Timin

31, Another manipulative practice used by Defendants‘ to explpit mutual fund pricing
i1s knhown as “timiqg,” which involves short-term “in-and-out” trading of '_mutual fund shares.
One timing scherﬁe is “time zone arbitragé,” which tékés advantage vof the fact tﬁat some funds
use “stale” ﬁriccs to calculate NAV. These price‘s‘ are “étale” because they do not hecessérily

reflect the “fair value” of such securities as of the time the NAYV is calculated. A typical

2 State of New York v. Canary Capital Partners et al., Supr. Ct. of N.Y., Complaint § 10.
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example is é U.S. mutual . that invests in Japanese companie‘cause of the time zone
difference, the japanese market closes at 2:00 a.m. New York time. When the NAYV is calculated
at 4:00 p.m. m New York, _it‘ is based upon market information that is fourteen hours old. If
theré have been positivév market moves during the New York ‘tradinbg day that will caunse the
Japanese market to rise when it opbens later, the stale Japanese‘prices will nbt reflect the price
change and the fund’s NAV will be arﬁﬁcially low. Put another way, fhevNAV does not reflect
_the true current market value of the stocks held by the fund. On such a day, a trader who buys
the Japanese fund at the “stale” price is v1rtually assured of a profit that can be realized the next
day by sellmg. ‘ By “timing” the fund, an investor seeks to earn repeated pro.ﬁts in a single
mutual fund. | | |
32. Another “timing” scheme is “liquidity arbitrage;.” Under this scheme, a trader
‘seeks to take advantage of stale prices in certain infrevquently traded investments, such as high-
yield bonds or the éfock of small capitalization companies. The faét that such securities may not
"have traded for houfs before the 4:00 p.m, closing time can render the fund’s NAV staie, and
thus open it to being timed. |
33. | The device of “timing” is inconsistent with and inimical to thq purpose for mutual
funds as long-term investments. Mutual Fuﬁ&_ are desi gﬁed for buy-and-hold investors, and are
therefore the preferred vinves:tment instruments for many retirement and sévings accounts,
Nonetheless, certain investors, like unscrupulous hedge funds or even mutual fund ménagers and»
t_heir associates, attempt to make quick in-and-but trades in order to exploit the iﬁefﬁc_:iency of
mutual fund pﬂcing. ~ The effect of “timing” is to artiﬁcially increase the frequency of
tra_nsactions in a mutual fund, .aﬁd consequcntiy increase the fund’s transactién cbsts

‘ substantially above what Woul_d be incurred if only buy-and-hold investors were trading in the
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fund’s shares.” The increaé.ansaciion costs, as well as édditiona‘ital gains taxes, reduoes
' the assets of the fund and in tumn its NAV. |

34, Continued successful late-trading or timing requires the complicity of a funds’
rnanagement, which the John Doe Defendanto receii'ed from the Alliance Defendants.

35. The Canafy Defendants and the John Doe Defendants obtained assistance to
engage in late trading directly from _defcndnnts Malone, Schaffran, and Alliance. In addition,
* Malone, Schafﬁ'é.n, _and other Allianc’e’ﬁduciaries, did not require assistance as they, themselves,
‘were responsible for the management imd administration of the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds,
inoluding the entry and execution of tradeo.in Alliance.Bems‘tein! Mutnol Funds. By failing to
" enforce or follow regulations | and policies prohibiting late trading, Allianoe 'allowed and
encouraged Canary and the John Doe Defendants and the Alliance Defendants to buy and sell -
‘ AllianceiBernstein Iviutual Funds, the very funds that defendants and their co-conspirators had the
fiduciary duty to oversee and protect from such mailfease'mce,. at the 4:00 p.m, price far beyond
the 4:00 p.m. deadline. Moreover; through tho ooordination of and solicitation by Alliance
fiduciaries, including but not limited‘ to defendants Schaffran and Malone, the John Doe
Defendants made short term trades on an ongoing basis ‘that‘ violated the policies of the
AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds. This conduct continued for a substantial amount of time and
was well known wit}iin Alliance a.nd amongst the fiduciaries responsible for the management of
AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds and was merely reflective of the self-dealing that pervaded
Alliance.

36. Defendant Bank of America installed special computer equipment in Canary’s |
office that allowed Canary to buy and sell hundreds of mutual funds offered to Bank of America
customers, including shares in the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds, at the 4:00 p.m. price until

6:30 p.m. New York time. Through this system, the Canary Defendants executed at least one
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late trade in Alliance Gro‘?.\d Income Fund valuéd at‘abproxin.' $11 million. In return
for the permission‘to late ﬁade énd tini_e the AllianceBemnstein Mutual Funds, the John Doe
Defendants égreed to leave millions of dollars in other Alﬁahce' invesﬁnent vehicles, inchiding. ,
Alliance he‘dge funds, on a long-term b_asis.v Such parked funds are known in the industry as
“sticky assets.” | |

37. Because of the harm market timing can causé, honest fund managers often seek to
minimize the disruptive .impact of timers by keeping césh on hand to pgy‘ out the timers’ profits
without having to sell stock.‘ However, such efforts by honest fund managers fo counter the ill
effects of “timing;’ on their funds, does not eliminate the practice, it Only redﬁces it. Indeed, one ‘
recent study estimated that U.S. mutual funds- lose $4 billion per year to timers. See Erié
Zitzewitz, “Who Cares About Shareholders? Arbitrage-Prooﬁng Mutual Funds” (October 2002),
ht_t]g://facultyégsb.sténford.edu/zitzewitz/R.esea_ch/arbitrage] 002.pdf. While it is viftually
impovssible for fund managers to identify every timing traa’é, large movements in and out of
funds, like those made by the J ohn Doe Defendants in the Fund are easily apparént. Moreover,
Malone, Schaffran, and the John Doe Defendants acﬁvely parficipated in the lirhing scheme by
knowineg soliciting, permitting, and executing the improper trades in the Fund. ‘

38. Fund managers generally have the power simply to reject timers’ purchases.
Many funds have also instituted short-term trading fees (“earl); redemption fees”) that effectively.v
| Wibe out the arbitrage that timers exploit. Typically, theée fees go directly into the éffected fund
to reimburse it for the costs of shoft term trading. These fees are waived if the fund managers
are, asbhere, assisting the timer. | |

39. In addition, fund managers are requir'edv to ﬁpdate NAVs at the end of the day in
New York when there have been-market rhoves that mibght render the NAV stale. This is called

giving the fund a “fair value”, and eliminates the timer’s arbitrage. As fiduciaries for their funds,
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they are obligated to use‘[ best .efforts to einploy these ava.e tools to protect their
customers from the dilution that iiming causes. L | |
FACTUAL BACKGROUND

40, Canary and the John Doe Defendants ,perpétrated two primary manipulative
schemes oh the Allimceﬁemstein Mutual Funds; from at least from 1999 to 2003 with the
complicity of the Alliance Defendants.. (These manipulative schemes were repeated regularly
with other funds and other fund managers,) The schemes violated the Investment Advispr’s and
Fund Manager’s fiduciary dutivésrto the funds but gained the maﬁagcrs substantial fees and other
income for themselves and their affiliates. -

41..  Alliance is the managef and investment advisor for all of the All_iénceBemstein '
Mﬁtual Funds. While each mutual fund is in fact its own company, as a practiéal matter the
Advisor, Alliance, through . varioﬁs subsidiaries, is. responsible for .the development,
undé;'writing, operation, distribution and marketing of all of thé funds. The portfolio managers
are all typi;:ally empioyees of the Advisor (who hold bfﬁce by‘election of the Directors) not the
mutual funds. The Advisor, Alliance, makes its profit from fees it chafges the funds for ﬁnafxcial
advice and other services. Such fees> a.ré typically a percentage éf the assets in the fund, so the
more assets in ‘the family of funds, the more money the Alliance makes, Knowing this, the timer _
frequently offers the fund manager/ainsor more assets in exchange‘ for the right to time. Fund
manager Alliance allowed timers, such as Caﬁary and one or more of the John Doe Defendants,
to target Speciﬁc funds (e.g. the and) to be hurt in exchange for additional money in their own
pockets in the form of higher management fges resulting .from Canary or the John Doe

Defef_xdants placing assets (“sticky funds”) in other AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds, usually

liquid asset funds.




: | 42. The Canar.y ‘.ndants uncovered significant timing‘>rtunities in 2000, 2001,
© 2002 and 2003 , starting with small cap technology funds. Beginning in late 2000, Canary even
engaged a consultant ‘whq' was devoted exclusively to looking for timing capacity. By J uly of
2003, Canary had negotiated (Sometimés directly, and sometimes: through intermediaries) timing
agréements with approximately thirty rﬁutﬁa] fund families, including Alliance, many of which
involved “sticky assets” — i ev.v, mvons_y parked in another investment vehicle ~ of one kind or
another. |

43, At the same time, Canary also began to e?cp‘and its fiming capaéity through an
- approach called “timihg under the radar.” This refers to placing trades in mutual fund shares in
suéh a way that the timing activity is difficult for the mutual fund family whose funds are targefs
to detect. Timers §vho pursue this 'stratc:gy trade through third parties, i.e., brokers or other
" intermediaries wh6 process large numbers of mutual fund trades -every day through omnibus
accounts‘where trades are submitted to mutual fund companies en masée. This way, timers hope
their activity will be lost amid the other trades in the omnibus account, |

44. While the Canary Defendants targeted a number of funds for timing under the
radar, that scheme waé .nevver lasting or dependable.ﬂ Such timing trades were subject to
discdvery and the timer being shut down if the mutual fund coﬁpmy noticed the unusﬁal
actiyity. It was much better business for Canary to negqtiate for timing capacity directly with
entities like Alliance even if it had to tie ﬁp séme of its capital in “sticky assets” to do so.

45. Canary achieved spectacular — albeit unlawful — success by timing and late

trading in mutual funds.

- % As an additional inducement for allowing the timing, fund managers often received “sticky
assets.” These were typically long-term investments made not in the mutual fund in which the
timing activity was permitted, but in one of the fund manager’s financial vehicles {e.g., a bond
fund or a hedge fund run by the manager) that assured a steady flow of fees to the manager.

14




46. In 1998, Ca. achieved profits of 18 percent pr and in 1999 its profits
~ soared to 110 percent. | ’

47; In the year 2000, Canary aehieved a net return of 49.5 percent while the. S&P 500
declined by 9 percent and the NASDAQ declined by 39 percent. By early 2001, Canary had
$184 million in assets.

48. In 2001, Canary earned a net return of 28.5 percent, while the S&P 500 and the
NASDAQ declined by' 13'p.ercent and‘21 percent, respeetively. By the end of 2001, Canary’s
assets had swelled to nearly $400 mllhon

49, In 2002, Canary eamed 15% (net of fees) in 2002 while the S&P 500 and the
NASDAQ declined by 23%and 3 1%, respectively. Cana:y s assets soared to $730 million.

50._ Aﬁer achlevmg dlsappomtmg profits of just of 1.5 percent in the first five months
of 2003, as U.S. equ1ty markets were rising, Canary’ returned all funds contributed by outside
investors. A letter accompanying the checks to investors stated: “We hope that you considered
the ride to be a good ene.”

51.  Plaintiffs believe that afier the opportunity for reasonable discovery, the evidence
will shoW that one er more of the John Doe Defendants likewise ‘engaged in market timing
activity, such as latevtﬁl.radin'g or time zone arbitrage, in one or more of the AllianceBernstein
Mutual Funds during the period from approxirnately 1999 through 2003. In exchange, John Doe
Defendants agreed to park money (i.e., sticky assets) in Alliance hedge funds.

52. Plaintiffs believe that after the opport_unity for reasonable discovery, the evidence
will show that one or more of the John Doe Defendants received permission from the Alliance
' Defendants to tlme certain AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds, partlcularly the Fund. Plaintiffs
further beheve that aﬁer the opportunity for reasonable discovery, the evidence will also show

that one or more John Doe Defendants agreed in exchange to park money (i.e., sticky assets) in
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Alliance hedge funds Allia.wermitted one or more John Doe De.nts to time thé Fund and
other AlliﬁnceBernstéin Mutual Funds. | |

53.  Throughout this same time p¢riod the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds publicly
maintained an excessive trading policy. For exanip.le, the August 7, 2003 prospectus fof ﬁle '
Fund states: |

The Fund may refuse any 6rder to purchase shares. In particular, the Fund
reserves the right to restrict purchases of shares (including through exchanges)

~when there appears to be evidence of a pattern of frequent purchases and sales

made in response to short-term considerations.
Virtually identical languagé was contained in prospectuéés fof other AllianceBernstein Mutual
Funds. | _ |

54, In thé face‘ of such policy and their ﬁduciary dﬁties, the Al]iva‘.‘nce Defendants
knowingly, deceptively perrnifted and  actively facilitated the Canary Defendants’ and/or the John ‘
Doe Defendants’ market tiﬁming, by entering into relationships with the Canary Defendants
and/or the iohn Doe Defendants to allow them to conduct laté trading and/or mark;:t timing in
the AllianceBernstein Mﬁtual Funds to the detﬁment of the funds.

55. The Cané.ry‘Defendants, the AJphn Doe Defendénté, and thé Allianc¢ Defendants
realized tens of millions of dt-)llars in profits as a result of thése timing arrangements at the
exﬁense of the AllianceBemstein_ Mutual Funds. In many cases these pfoﬁts'also reﬂgct late
trading, as the Canary Defendants and/or the John Doe Devfendants 'wéuld frequently negotiate a »'
timing agreement with a mutual fund management company/advisor and then préceed to late
trade the target funds fhrough intermediaries.

56; Aé a result of the misconduct alleged herein, and a subsequent inveétigatior; of
such miscoﬁduct by the Attorney General of the State of New York, ‘Alliavnce was compelled to
suspend Defendants Malone and Sc‘haffran for their role in the wrongdoing and the injury he

inflicted upon the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds, including the Fund. ‘
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57. _ These everi‘we had‘ and will have a series o‘etedoué effects on the
AllianceBernstein Mutual family of funds, including but not limited to: | | |
| (a) Loss of confidence of the investing public in the integrity and
management of the AllianceBemstein Mutuél Funds, fhereby resulting in the AllianceBernstein
Mutual Funds losiﬁg NAYV and market ‘value.
' (b)  As aresult of the defcndé.nts’ miSconduct, the AllianceBernstein Mutual
Fuﬁds are‘exposed to sigm'ﬁéant regulafory s>cru-tiny and to suit by investors for losses resulting
from the defendants’ misconduct, thereby, at a minimum, causing the AllianceBernstein Mutual
Funds to incur unnecessal;y direct and indirect investigatory, litigation, and édministrative costs,
and _poteﬁtially iesulting in _aWards, judgments, or settlements against the AllianceBernstein

Mutual Funds.

Other Illegal and Improper Trading Aéti'vity by the Ca'nary Defendants

58. Canary also engaged» in late trading with Kaplan &‘Co.: Securities Inc., a Boc;a
Réton, Florida broker dealer, which Canafy approached after héaring that it proﬂded late trading.
The contract between Cé,nary and Kaplan & Co. provides that “[f]inal instructions for tradés to -
be executed for Client shall be provided telephonically or by e-mail and shali be received no later
than 4:30 p.m. EST at the offices of Képlan & Co.,” aﬁd indicates the possibility that Kaplan &
Co. would vexecute .trades rgceived latér than that. | In May 2000, Canary entered into its
agreement with fhe Sécurity Trust Company through which it gained the capability ‘of submitting
its orders until 8:30 p.m. New Yorl.c time. Canary continued to expand its channels for late
trading and timing ultimately setting up a number of separate arrangements. .T}‘lese third pm'ty

executed late trades gave the Canary Defendnts the ability to late trade viftually all mutual funds.
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Equity Baskets . , ‘ ‘
59. In 2001, faced with dropping markets, Canary developed a complex strategy that
* allowed them to in effect sell mutﬁal.funds short and profit on déclining NAVs. To achieve this,
Canary first needed to determine the exact portfolio makeup of a targé"t mqtual fund. Mutual
fund xﬁanagers were happy to provide this information to Canary. Cané.ry would then (i) sell
these secuﬁtie§ short to create a negative mirror image of the fund, and (i) buy the fundvin an
offsetting amount. . As a result, Canary wpuld owﬁ the sharés of the fund, but be o‘v_erall “market
neutral.” It would then wait, fully hedged, until there was a market event that would drive down
“the fund’s price and create an opportunity for arbi)trage; Canary would séll the shares back to the
fund that day at an artificially high price {because thé NAV would not yet fully reflect the market
movement downward) and then close out the short position with cheéper, marke_t price shares.
The cash left over was Caﬂary’s profit. To reduce the transaction cosfs of the strategy, Canary
worked with derivatives dealers (including Bank of America) to create “equity baskets” of short
positions inAfund holdings that mimicked the effect of shorting every stock in the fund, with one
| customized “basket” per fund. This strategy served Canary well through the market drops in
2001 and 2002. |
Bank of America -

60. As part of ité rampant séhéme ovf ‘manipulative and _deceptive trading, Canary also
established a late trading and timing relation‘ships With the Bank of America. For example, |
starting in 2001, the Bank of Amériéa (i) set“vCanary up with a’state-of-the-art electronic late
trading platform, allowing it to tradé late iﬁ the hundfeds of mutual funds that the bank offers to
_ its customers, (ii) gave Canéry pénniséion to time its 6wn mutual fund family, the “Nations
Funds,” v(iii) provided Canary with apﬁroxi_mately $300 million. of credit to finance fhis late

trading and timing, and (iv) sold Canary the derivative short positions it needed to time the funds .
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as the market dropped. .le process, Canary bc;,cé.mc one of‘k of America’s largest
customers. The importance here ‘is'the use of the electronic trading platform that permitted
trading on hundreds of mutual funds by thg Canary Defendants. | |

61.  Inorder to facilitate market timing in the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds, as well
as other mutual funds, Defendant Bank of America provided to the Canary ’Defenda.nts and/or the

| John Doe Defendants certain computer soﬁwaré that §nabled them to execute their own late

trades and timed trades. - o o

62. The ‘plaintiffé believe that aﬁef the opportunity for reasonable discovery, the | ‘
evidence will sﬁow that the Canary Defeﬁdants ‘and/or the John Doé D‘gfenda‘nts utilized the
computef software provided to them by defendant Bank of America to time the
AllianceBernsetin Mutual Funds as well as other mutual funds. _ |

| DEMAND EXCUSED ALLEGATIONS

63. The plaintiff has not made demand ﬁpon the directors of the Fund or the directors
of the AllianceBemstein Mutual Funds to‘bring. an action against the Alliance Defendanis, the
Canary Defendants, the John Doe Defendants, and other culpzible parties to remedy such
moﬁgdoing. |

64. | Demand is excﬁsed because no such dcman& is required for the plaintiff to assert
a federal clai.m undgr Section 36(b) of the Investment Company Act, 15 U.S.C. § 80a-35(b), for
breach of ﬁduciary duty in conﬁection With the compensation arid other payménts paid to
Alliance.

>65. Demand is aiso excused beéause the unlawfﬁl acts and praétices alleged herein are

not subject to the protection of any business judgment rule and could not be ratified, approved, or

~condoned by disinterested and informed directors under any circumstances.




66. Demand is ‘excused because the unlawful écts .practices alleged herein
involve self-dealing on the pért of the Alliance Defendants and its directors and officers, who
manage and control the day—to;day affairs of the Fund énd the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds.
| 67. | Demand upon. the Directors is also excused because the Directors of the
AllianceBemstein Mutual Funds _ére all hand-picked by Alﬁance x.na.nag‘ernent, and thus owe
their positions as well as their loyaltiebs solely to Alliance management and lack sufficient
independerice to exercise business‘ judgment. Because the Directorrs oversee numerous separate
AllianceBernstein Mutﬁél Funds, the Directors derive substantial revenue and other benefits for
thé?ir serQices. Moréover, three directors of the Fund, Carifa, Dievler, and Foulk, are also
directors of the AllianceBernstein Technology Fund which is- élso implicated as part of the
market timing scheme alleged herein.

| 68. ”Finally, demand is excused because suéh demand would be futile. The unlawful
acts and practices aliéged ‘herein have been the subject of an investigation by the Attorney
General of the St;te of New York and the United ‘Statevs Seéurities and'Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) for some time.* Ina September 30, 2003, letter from Alliéncé Capital jnvestor relations
to shareholders of the AllianceBefnstein Mutual Funds; Alliance indicated that it had been
contacted by the Attomey General and fhe SEC as part of the ‘invesﬁgatiqns into mutual fund
practices and “ha[d] beén providing full coopération.” Furthermoré, Alliance Capital annéunced
_ that it had suspendéd tWo_éfnﬁloyeés, including defendanfs Malone and Schaffran, in response to
| conflicts of interests discovered :through an inter’nalb investigation. Conséquently, the Directors
already hﬁve been informed éf the wrongdoing alleged herein and have faileci énd refused to-takc

appropriate action to recover damages for the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds. No shareholder

4 That investigation resulted in the filing of a Complaiﬁt by the New York Attorney General
against Canary on September 3, 2003, and a $40 million partial settlement with Canary.
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~demand could o? wouldbpr‘ the directors to take action if the N"ork Attorney General’s
investigation did not.
| ' COUNTI
Violation Of Section 36 Of The Investment Co'mpany Act And For

Control Personal Liability Under The Investment Company Act
(Against the Alliance Defendants and the Directors)

69. Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 68 aBove as if set forth
herein. o |

70. | Pursuant to Section 36 of the Investment Company Act, 15 U.S.C. § 80a-35(b),
the investment advisor of a mutual fund owes to the mutual fund and its shareholders a fiduciary
duty with respect to its receipt of compensation for services or payments of any material nature,
paid by the mutual fund or its shareholders to sucﬁ investment ad\;isor or any affiliated person.

71. Pursuant to Section 36(b) of the Investment Company Act, 15 US.C. § 80a-35(b),
a civil acfion may be brougbt byr a mutual fund shareholder against an investment advisor or any
affiliated persbn who has breached his or its fiduciary duty concemiﬁg such compensation or
other payrneﬁts.

72, As ‘alleged above in this Complaint, each Alliance Defendént and each Director
. breached his or its fiduciary duty with respect to ‘the receipt of ‘cﬂompensation or other payments»
from the AllianceBerhstein Mutual Funds or their shareholders.

73. By agreeing and/or conspiring with the Canary Defendants and/or the J ohp Doe
Defendants to permit and/or encourage said defendants-to‘timg the AllianceBernstein Mutnal
Funds, the Alliance Defendants placed their owﬁ self-interest in maximizing their compensation
‘a.n‘d other payments éver the interest of the‘ AllianccBernsiein Mutual Funds and its shareholders. -

-74. By virtue of the foregbing; the Alliance Defendants and the Directors have

violated Section 36(b) of the Investment Company Act, 15 U.S.C. § 80a-35(b).

- 2'1.




75. As a direcf.pfoximate .fesult of the Alliance De‘ants’ wrongful conduct,
-the assets and value (including the NAV) of tﬁe AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds have been
reduced and diminished and the corporate assets of tﬁé AllianceBemstein Mutual Funds have
: been wasted and the Alliance Defendants and the Directors are liable.
COUNT II

. YIOLATION OF SECTION 10(b) OF THE
EXCHANGE ACT AND RULE 10b-5

(Against Alliance, the Canary Defendants, Bank of America and John Does 1-100

76. Plaintiff incorpofgtes by reference paragraf;hs 1 through 75 ‘above as if .set forth
herein. | | | | | |
77. ‘ _A_Iliance, the Canary Defenda.ﬁts, Bank of America and John Does 1-1 00 diréctly
engaged in a cémmon plan, scheme, and unlawful course of conduct, pursuaﬁt to which they
knowingly or lreéklessly engaged 1n acts, transactions, practiées and courses of business and
- manipulative devices which operéted as a fraud and deceit on the AllianceBernstein Mutual
Funds. The purpose and effect of the scheme, plan, and unlawful bburse of conduct was, among
- other things, tp deceive and harm the Plaintiff and cause the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds to
‘sell securities at artificially deflated values as described in the Complaint. |
78. The AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds have sufféred damagqs as a result of the
" wrongs .herein alleged in an 'arn()unt to be proved at trial. |
79. By reason of the foregoing, said Defendants have violated Section 10(b) of the
Exchange Actvan‘d Rulc_a 10b-5 promulgated thereunder and are liable to the AllianceBermnstein
‘Mutual Funds for damages which they suffered in connection with the purchase or sale of

securities in those funds.

22




‘ - COUNTII .
VIOLATION OF SECTION 20(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT
(Against Alliance Holding, AXA Financial, ACMC)

80. . Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 79 above as if set forth
herein. | | |
81. Ailiance Hoiding, AXA Financial, ACMC_ (the “Controlling Defendants™) acted
as a controlling persoﬁ of Alliance within the meaning of Section 20(a) of the Exchang.e Act as
‘élleg.ed herein. By virtue‘ of the Controiling'Defendanté’ ownership éhd/or parthership interests
in Alliance, as set forth in paragraphs 8-10 o‘f this complaint, and active participation in and/or -
aWarcness -of Alliaﬁce’s day-to-day operations, the Contrdlling .Defendants had the power to
‘inﬁuence and qonfrol ‘a_nd did influence and control, directly or indirectly, thcvde'cision—making. of
Alliance. The Controlling Defendants had unlimited access to Alliancé’s records éf transactions
and had the ability to prevent Alliance from engaging in the schemeé and artifices to defraud
complained of in this Complaint. | .
‘82. The Controlling Defendants had direct and supervisory involvement over the day- -
to-day operations of the Alljanqe énd, therefore, are presumed to have had and did have the
~power to coﬁtrol or influence the parti‘cular tranéactions giving rise to the securitiés violations as
- alleged he;eiﬁ, and exercised the same.v |
83‘. By virtue of its i)osition as a controlling persoﬁ, the Controlling Defendants are
. liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. Asa direct‘ and proﬁimate result of their

wrongful conduct, the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds suffered damages in connection with the

-acts and ;Sractices alleged in this Complaint.




i - : . .
‘ COUNTIV .
Common Law Breach Of Fiduciary Duty

(Against the Alliance Defendants and the Director Defendants)
- 84. Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 83 above as if set forth

herein.

- 85. | Thé'Alliance Defendants and the Director Defendants'and each of them 6wed to
the AllianceBem’sticn Mu‘cua] Funds; the Fund, and their shareholdt;.rs, the duty to exércise due
care and vdiligcnce, honesty and loyalty in the managemént and administration of the affairs of
- each AllianceBernstein Mutual Fund and in the use and preservation of its proéérty and assets,
and owed tﬁe duty of full and candid disclosure of all métérial facts thereto. Further, said
defendants owed a duty to the AllianceBemnstein Mutual Funds and the:ii' shareholders not to
waste the funds’ corporate assets énd not to place their own pérsonal self-interest above the best
~ interest of the funds and their shareholders. |

86.  To discharge those duties, the Alliance Defendants and the Director Defendants
were required to exercise prudént supervision over the maﬁaggmént, policies, practices, controls,
and financial and corporate affairs of the AllianceBerns.tein Mutual Funds. o

87.  As alleged above, éach of said defendants breached his or its fiduciary duty by
receiving excessive comp‘ensatioﬁ or payments in connection with the Canary Defendants’
and/or John Doe Defendants’ timing scheme and other ma.nipﬁlative schemés as alleged in this
Complaint. -

88.  As alleged above, each of said defgndaﬁts also breached his or its fiduciary duty
to preserve aqd not to waste the assets of the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds by permitting or

incurring excess'c‘harges and expenses to the funds in connection with the Canary Defendants’

and/or John Doe Defendants’ timing scheme.




. ~ COUNTV ‘
. AIDING AND ABETTING BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY
o Against Canary and John Does 1-100

89.  Plaintiff ineorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 88 aboye as if set forth

herein. | | |
| 90, - The Canary and John Doe Defendants knew of the existenee of the fiduciary duty

between the Alliance Defendants and the Director Defendante and the AilianceBefnstein Mutual
Funds and knew tne extent of that duty. The Canary and John Doe Defendants knew of the acts
of late trading and timing rnade by them on the AllianceBernstein Mntual Funds and knew that
these acts and manipulative devices were a Breach of the ﬁdnciary dnties the Alliance
Defendants and tne Director Defendants owedb to the A]lianceBemstein Mutual Funds. The
Canar"y and John Doe Defendants maliciously, witnout justification and through uniawful means,
aided and abetted and conspired with the Alliance Defendants and the Difector Defendants in
breaching their fiduciary duties and plfovided substantial assistance and encouragement to the
Alliance Defendants and the Director Defendants in violating their fiduciary duties in the manner
and by the aetions described in this Complaint.

91. The Canary and John Doe D.efendants are jointly and severally liable to the
- AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds for damages proximately caused by their aiding and abetting as -
alleged l‘lerein‘.

92. As a direct and proximate result.of defendants’ wrongful conduct, the assets and

value (ineluding the NAV) of the Funds has been reduced and diminished and the corporate

assets of the Funds have been wasted.




. | COUNT VI | .
CIVIL CONSPIRACY _
Against Alhance Defendants Cana Defendants, Bank of America and John Does 1-100)

93, Plaintiff mcorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 92 above as if set forth
herein. | | |

94. The Alliance Defendants Canary Defendants, Bank of Amen'ce and John
DoesDefendants entered into an agreement or agreements or combmatlons with each other to
accomplish by common plan the 111ega] acts described in this. Complamt and by their actions
v demonstrated the existence of an agreement and combination.

- 05, _The Alliance Defendants, Canary Defendants, Dank of America_and John_Doe_
Defendants byvtheir aetions have manifested actual knowledge that a tortions or illegal act or acts
was planned and thelr 1ntent10n to a1d n such act or acts. |

96. The Alliance Defendants Canary Defendants, Bank of America and John Doe
Defendants 1-100 maliciously and mtentlonally consplred combmed and agreed with one
another to commit the unlawful acts alleged in’ this Compleint or to eommit acts by unlawful
means causing injury to Plaintiff and proxirnately causing injury and damages to the Plaintiff for
whmh they are jointly and severally liable.

97 The AlhanceBemstem Mutual Funds have suffered damages as a result of the

. wrongs and the conspiracy to commit such wrongs as alleged in the Complaint in an amount to
be proved at trial.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment as follows:

A. Removing the current Directors of the Trust and replacing them with independent
Directors,
'B. Awardmg monetary damages against all of the Defendants, Jomtly and severally,

in favor of the AlhanceBernstem Mutual Funds, for al) losses and damages suffered as a result of
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the wrongdoings alleged .1s Complamt mcludmg punitive v.ges where appropriate,
'together with interest thereon |

C. - Awarding plaintiff the fees and expenses incurred in this action, including

reasonable allowance of fees for plaintiff’s attorneys, and experts,
D. Granfing plaintiff such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and
proper.

JURY TRIAL DEMANED

Plaintiffs hereby demand a tnal by jury of all issues so triable,

Dated: New York, New York , : "WOLF HALDENSTEIN ADLER
October 22, 2003 - . FREEMAN & HERZ LLP '
By: \E

Daniel W. Krasner
Fred T. Isquith (FI 6782)
Mark C. Rifkin (MR 0904)
Robert Abrams
Christopher S. Hinton -
270 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10016
(212) 545-4600

CHITWOOD & HARLEY
Martin D. Chitwood

Lauren S. Antonino

2300 Promenade II

1230 Peachtree Street, N.E.
Atlanta, Georgia 30309

Tel: (404) 873-3900

Fax: (404) 876-4476

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF




Exhibit A

ALUANCEBERNSTEW FAMILY OF FUNDS

U.8. Growth Funds
Groweth Fund

Healih Care Fund
Mid-Cap Groath Furnd .
Premiar Growth Fund
Quasar Fund
Techndlogy Fund

Value Funds

Cisaidined Vaue Fund
Global Vaua Fund

Groweh & Income Fund

Inter national Value Fund
Real Estate Investmarnt Fund
Small Cap ¥alus Furd ‘
UHility income Fund

Value Fund

Blandod Stylo Sarios
U.8. Largs Cap Portidlio

Global & Intomational Stook Funds
All-Asia Investment Fund
Global 3mall Cap Fund
Greatar China '87 Fund .
International Premier Growth Fund -
Mav: Europe Fund

- Worldviicke Privatizaticn Funcl

Salort Investor Serios
Biotechnology Portfolio
Prermier Perifolio ‘
Technology Pertfclio

Taxabls Bond Funds

Amarnicas Government Income Trust
Comporata Bond Portiolio

Emnargng Markeat Dabt Fund

Glnbal Stratagic incorme Trust

High Yiald Fund

Taxasble Bond Funds fcontinuady)
Multi-Market Stratogy Trust

Cudity Bond Portilio

U.8. Goverrment Fortidlio

Tax -Exempt Bond Funds -
Mationsl

intermediata Diversified
Insurec] Natlcnal

Arinona

Calfomia

Interrmediata Califorma
Insured Cahfomla

FAcrida :

Massachusstts ’

- Michigan

Minnescta

Mew/ Jersay

Newy York

Intermediata Naw York
QChio

Panneyivania

Virgiria

Aszgat Allocation Flnds

Balanced Sharps
Corsarvative Irvastors Fund
Greavth Investors Fund

" Closed-End Funds

All-Market Advantaga Fund ‘
ACM Income Fund
ACM Goworrment Cpportunily Fund

- ACM Maraped Dotlar Incems Fund
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 VERIFICATION

L Zazﬂ £ '_6;4@ peing - competent to testify and based on personal

knowledge, hereby verify that I have read the foregoing complaint against Defendants and

that it is true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief.

‘ 7 '
Dated; ,s%ﬁéb‘gr /2003
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SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF NEW YORK S &%%Q)‘l
. X
STEPHEN S. DAVIES, derivatively, on behalf of ) Index No. , 0 3 &
ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

- HOLDING, L.P.. ~ Purchased and filed on: .
_ Plaintiff designates
- New York County as the
~ place of trial

Plaintiff,

AXA FINANCIAL, INC., a Delaware Corporation;
ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
CORPORATION, a Delaware Corporation;
BRUCE W. CALVERT; DONALD H. BRYDON;
JOHN D. CARIFA; HENRI de CASTRIES;
CHRISTOPHER CONDRON; DENIS DUVERNE;
RICHARD S. DZIADZIO; ALFRED HARRISON;
ROGER HERTOG; BENJAMIN D. HOLLOWAY
W. EDWIN JARMAIN PETER D. NORIS;
LEWIS A SANDERS; FRANK SAVAGE;
LORIE A SLUTSKY; PETER J. TOBIN;
STANLEY B. TULIN and DAVE L. WILLIAMS,

The basis of venue is place of business
. of defendants

Plaintiff resides in Sandyhook, CT

- 1 "}‘.r
Lot 4l o
e T
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Defendants : _,
and. 0CT 24 2003 |
ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT o NEW YOHK o
HOLDING, L.P. e s RKS GFFICE

~ Nominal Defendant.

To the above named defendants

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED to answer the complalm in this action and to serve a copy
of your answer, or, if the complaint is not served with this summons, to serve a notice of appearance,
on the Plaintiff's Attorneys within 20 days after service of this summons, exclusive of the day of
service (or within 30 days after the service is complete if this summons is not personally delivered
to you within the State of New York); and in case of your failure to appear or answer, judgment will
be taken against you by default for the relief demanded in the complaint. .




Defendants’ addresses: .

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
HOLDING L.P.

1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS ‘
NEW YORK NY 10105 :

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
CORPORATION

1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS

NEW YORK NY 10105

AXA FINANCIAL, INC,;
1250 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
NEW YORK NY 10104

" BRUCE W. CALVERT
¢/o

CORPORATION
1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS -
NEW YORK NY 10105

DONALD H BRYDON

c/o

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
CORPORATION

1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS

NEW YORK NY 10105

JOHN D. CARIFA

c/o

‘ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
CORPORATION

1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS

NEW YORK NY 10105

HENRI de CASTRIES

c/o

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
- CORPORATION

1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS

NEW YORK NY 10105 .

CHRISTOPHER CONDRON
“cfo
ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
- CORPORATION
- 1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
NEW YORK NY 10105

. DENIS DUVERNE

c/o

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 CORPORATION

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT- |

1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS .
NEW YORK NY 10105

RICHARD S. DZIADZIO

clo

ALLIANCE CAPITAL ' MANAGEMENT
CORPORATION

1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS

NEW YORK NY 10105

ALFRED HARRISON |

co

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
CORPORATION

1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS

- NEW YORK NY 10105

ROGER HERTOG
c/o

. ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT.

CORPORATION
1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
NEW YORK NY 10105

BENJAMIN D. HOLLOWAY

c/o

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
CORPORATION v

1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS

NEW YORKv NY 10105

W. EDWIN JARMAIN
c/o

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

CORPORATION
1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
NEW YORK NY 10105

PETER D. NORIS

c/o
ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

. CORPORATION

1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
NEW YORK NY 10105

LEWIS A SANDERS

c/o

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
CORPORATION

1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS

NEW YORK NY 10105 :

FRANK SAVAGE




R}

c/o '

ALLIANCE CAPITAL - MANAGEMENT
CORPORATION -

1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS

NEW YORK NY 10105

LORIE A SLUTSKY
c/o
ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
CORPORATION
1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
NEW YORK NY 10105

PETER J. TOBTN

c/o

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
CORPORATION

1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS

NEW YORK NY 10105

STANLEY B. TULIN '
c/o

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT.‘

CORPORATION
1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
NEW YORK NY 10105

D/AVE L. WILLIAMS

c/o

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
CORPORATION

- 1345 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS

NEW YORK NY 10105

Dated: vOctober 22, 2003

BULL & LIFSHITZ, LLP

By: "/"7"

~ Peter D. Bull

Joshua M. Lifs
18 East 41* Street -
11" Floor

New York, New York 10017

Tel.: (212) 213-6222

Attorneys for Plaintiff




